

Achieving Common Goals

Final Report

Arlington, VA March 20-21, 2003





Department of Health and Human Services Administration for Children and Families Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration

National Conference on Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and Substance Abuse



ACHIEVING COMMON GOALS

Conference Final Report

Prepared by:

Seri Palla Associate

Courtney Kakuska Senior Associate

Bradley Myles Research Assistant

Dr. Jeanette Hercik Project Manager

Caliber Associates 10530 Rosehaven Street Suite 400 Fairfax, Virginia 22030 Tel: (703) 385-3200 Fax: (703) 385-3206

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services Administration for Children and Families Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Submitted in Accordance With: IDIQ No. 233-01-0067 Task Order 22 November 2003

TABLE OF CONTENTS

				<u>Page</u>	
I.	CON	I-1			
II.	BACKGROUND: TANF & SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT				
III.	CONFERENCE SESSIONS				
	1. WELCOMING REMARKS			III-1	
	2.	KEY	III-2		
	3.	STATES: ON THE FOREFRONT OF RECOVERY & SELF-SUFFICIENCY		III-4	
		3.1 3.2 3.3	North Carolina Illinois Oklahoma	III-6	
	4.	CONFERENCE LUNCHEON—TANF PART II: PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE		III-13	
	5. ACHIEVING COMMON GOALS		III-15		
		5.1 5.2	Part I: Working with TANF Representatives Part II: Working with Substance Abuse Representatives		
	6.	6. ACTION PLAN ASSIGNMENTS & DAY ONE ROUNDUP		III-19	
	7.	FACILITATOR'S REPORT III-2			
	8.	COM	COMMITMENT TO CHANGE: REVIEW OF ACTION PLANS		
		8.1	Sample Goal One: To Increase the Number of TANF/SA Clients Moving Toward Self-sufficiency	III-22	
		8.2	Sample Goal Two: Complete Drug/Alcohol Screening on All TANF Participants at the Time of Initial Review	III-22	
		8.3	Sample Goal Three: Establish a TANF/Office of Substance Abuse Services State-level Collaboration To Develop Strategies To Identify, Assess, and Treat TANF Families Affected by Substance Abuse	III-23	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

	8.4	Sample Goal Four: Develop an Integrated Services Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)	III-23				
	8.5	Sample Goal Five: Determine Specific Treatment Activities that can be Defined as Work	III-23				
9.	CONF	FERENCE CLOSING AND FINAL THOUGHTS	. III-24				
APPENDIX A: CONFERENCE AGENDA							
APPENDIX B: CONFERENCE SPEAKERS AND PARTICIPANTS							

APPENDIX C: CONFERENCE EVALUATIONS

The following report describes the Achieving Common Goals National conference that took place in Arlington, Virginia March 20-21, 2003 at the Crystal City Marriott Hotel. The conference agenda is included as Appendix A; Appendix B lists the conference speakers and participants, and Appendix C summarizes the conference evaluations.

I. CONFERENCE OVERVIEW

I. CONFERENCE OVERVIEW

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services' (HHS) Administration for Children and Families (ACF) and the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration (SAMHSA) co-sponsored a two-day conference entitled *"Achieving Common Goals"* bringing together substance abuse treatment agency directors and Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) administrators from forty States, the District of Columbia, and the Virgin Islands. The conference, which was held in Arlington, Virginia on March 20–21 2003, provided a forum for these policymakers and administrators to share information about their experiences and concerns, and their promising strategies used in strengthening the collaboration and partnership of TANF and substance abuse treatment directors.

The conference's overall goal was to help TANF administrators and substance abuse agency directors to build stronger networks and design effective work/treatment integrated programs for families struggling with substance abuse. In particular, the conference highlighted programs assisting families in regaining a life in the community through prevention and treatment and ultimately moving on toward self-sufficiency. Each State TANF and substance abuse administrator were tasked to work collaboratively to develop an action plan with concrete steps, which he/she can take when they get back home after the conference. This initial interactive exercise began a process of each State team: (1) brainstorming how to create and strengthen their collaboration in light of the era of welfare reform, and; (2) developing strategies and solutions to provide families with necessary treatment while supporting full work engagement and self-sufficiency. The project includes a follow-up evaluation with each State participant to determine if these initial steps resulted in any new policy/programmatic changes in their State. The unique structure of the conference, guided by the collaboration at the Federal level, emphasized a new vision of building State partnerships that transforms policy into effective new practices that achieve common goals.

II. BACKGROUND: TANF & SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT

II. BACKGROUND: TANF & SUBSTANCE ABUSE

In 1996, the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act (PRWORA) fostered a new vision for public assistance—welfare as short term, time-limited assistance designed to help families move to work and onto self-sufficiency. It created a new block grant for States called Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and dramatically changed the nature and provision of welfare benefits in America.

TANF places a strong emphasis on work by imposing work participation rates on States and work participation requirements on recipients. TANF compelled welfare agencies to strengthen their workforce development activities, either by bolstering their in-house capabilities or forging relationships with the nationwide workforce development system, in order to help families transition from welfare to work. The work requirements and time limits under the TANF system provide little room for work exemption and create an incentive for welfare agencies to explore the needs of those recipients overcoming serious and more difficult challenges such as substance abuse addiction – so that they, too, may move into work and be assisted on a path toward self-sufficiency. The flexibility of TANF has encouraged welfare agencies to bring together the relevant stakeholders (including employers, substance abuse agencies, and workforce specialists) and craft the array of services and supports that will help its recipients successfully overcome their challenges, obtain and retain work and move toward selfsufficiency.

Research has indicated that substance abuse and mental health problems are more prevalent among welfare recipients than non-recipients. National estimates of the welfare population with substance abuse issues range from 5 to 27 percent (and State and local estimates range from 9 to 60%), compared to 4 to 12 percent of the general population (National Household Survey, SAMHSA, 2000, & Johnson et al, 1998). The evidence is clear that substance abuse is significantly more common among those on public assistance than those not receiving assistance and, long-term welfare recipients are more likely to have substance abuse problems than short-term recipients (Physician Leadership on National Drug Policy, 2001).

A significant number of TANF recipients face multiple external barriers on the path to self-sufficiency, such as low educational attainment, difficulty securing child care and transportation, poor work skills, and health issues (Capitani, et. al.). Substance abuse often exacerbates these barriers and makes the transition to self-sufficiency more difficult. A challenge for State and local TANF agencies in designing effective screening, assessment, referral, and treatment protocols is that often the concepts of treatment and self-sufficiency are viewed as separate and distinct. However, several States are presently attempting to collaboratively address the challenges of recovery, work, and self-sufficiency through a variety of integrated work/treatment models.

Just as other clients facing serious challenges, those with substance abuse problems should be sufficiently challenged to devote their full efforts to resolving their problems and supporting their families. Workers need to combine this knowledge with high expectations that their clients will succeed, and these expectations need to be conveyed to recipients early in the process. A singular focus on abstinence to the exclusion of work and other responsibilities is not the most effective way to foster recovery (Wetzler, S., 2000). TANF clients faced with addiction should get the treatment help they need, but concurrently in their efforts to work and pursue selfsufficiency. There are a variety of TANF programs that have addressed alcohol and drug problems without compromising the emphasis on employment. For example, in States such as Oregon and New York, the prevailing philosophy regarding the relationship between employment for welfare recipients and alcohol and drug use is that the need for alcohol and drug treatment does not render one unemployable or incapable of participating in work-related activities. Clients in treatment are expected to simultaneously work toward economic selfsufficiency. Furthermore, while alcohol and drug treatment can be a component of a client's self-sufficiency plan and at times may be the primary activity, it rarely is the only activity. The bottom line is that whenever possible, treatment is combined with work or work-related activities (Kirby, Pavetti, Kauff, Tapogna, 1999).

These research studies highlight the substance abuse issues that TANF programs and substance abuse treatment programs are dealing with, and clearly indicate that TANF agencies and substance abuse treatment providers need to effectively address the challenge of substance abuse in light of welfare reform. In order to reduce welfare dependence, successful treatment must incorporate more than substance abuse issues. Today, both TANF and substance abuse treatment program administrators recognize that treatment in the absence of work does not fully meet the needs of TANF clients with substance abuse issues (Kakuska & Hercik, 2003). In response to the need to expand the collaboration between these two systems, ACF in partnership with SAMHSA co-sponsored the innovative *Achieving Common Goals* conference. The purpose of the *Achieving Common Goals* conference was two-fold:

- 1. To look at strategies to address TANF recipient's treatment needs in concert with supporting full work engagement and self-sufficiency. The conference provided a forum for peers to share information about their experiences and concerns, and their promising strategies used in strengthening the collaboration and partnerships between TANF and substance abuse treatment agencies.
- 2. To help both TANF and substance abuse treatment administrators build stronger networks, and even more effective TANF and substance abuse programs by using the flexibility of TANF to address the substance abuse treatment and other needs of recipients along the road to self-sufficiency. Senior Federal policy-makers presented discussions of innovative approaches for establishing this partnership, and on how to use this alliance to ultimately move dependent families toward self-sufficiency.

CITATIONS

- Capitani, J., Jeanette Hercik and Courtney Kakuska. 2001. Pathways to Self-Sufficiency: Findings of the National Needs Assessment. Washington, DC: Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Family Assistance.
- Johnson, A., & Meckstroth, A. 1998. Ancillary Services to Support Welfare to Work. Princeton, NJ: Mathematica Policy Research, Inc.
- Kirby, G., Pavetti, L., Kauff, J., Tapogna, J. 1999. Integrating Alcohol and Drug Treatment into a Work-Oriented Welfare Program: Lessons from Oregon. Princeton, NJ: Mathematica Policy Research, Inc.
- Kakuska, C. & Hercik, J. 2003. Addressing Treatment: Where We've Been. Fairfax, VA: Caliber Associates.
- National Household Survey. 2000. Rockville, MD: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Department of Health and Human Resources.
- Physician Leadership on National Drug Policy: 2001. Best Practice Initiative: State-Level Issues for Medicaid/Welfare and Substance Abuse Treatment.
- Wetzler, S. (2000) An Innovative Approach To Welfare Reform: The University Behavioral Associates Bronx Demonstration Project (Unpublished Manuscript).

III. CONFERENCE SESSIONS

III. CONFERENCE SESSIONS

The conference sessions offered participants an opportunity to hear from recognized national leaders. Participants were invited to ask questions of the panelists. The following subsections of this report summarize these conference sessions.

1. WELCOMING REMARKS

Speaker: Charles G. Curie, M.A., A.C.S.W., Administrator, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)

Moderator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, Office of Family Assistance (OFA), Administration for Children and Families (ACF)

The Chief Program Officer for the Office of Family Assistance (OFA), Grant E. Collins II, began the conference with introductory remarks and words of welcome for all speakers and participants. Mr. Collins explained that this conference provided an opportunity to address existing issues, and to strengthen the collaboration between Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) and substance abuse treatment programs. The three main purposes of the Achieving Common Goals conference are:

- 1. To build networks to expand the capacities of States
- 2. To facilitate peer-to-peer interaction
- 3. To provide an opportunity for discussion with Federal officials and get insights on TANF Reauthorization as Congress addresses it.

The conference included representatives from both substance abuse and TANF agencies from forty States, the District of Columbia, and the Virgin Islands.

Following a brief introduction by Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration's (SAMHSA) Director of Policy Coordination, Ulonda Shamwell, Charles G. Curie stressed the impact of such a conference, "This is the first conference of its kind. This initiative demonstrates that we want to meet the challenges. It sends a message that we care about families, barriers, and achieving self-sufficiency as a milestone in our TANF client's lives." Mr. Curie also spoke of how SAMHSA structures its work around the vision of a life in the community for everyone, including a job, a home, and meaningful relationships. If we are truly serious about moving families toward self-sufficiency, TANF clients need an answer to the question "What do you do?" A meaningful job is the key to self-sufficiency, because it provides the client a real reason to stay sober by defining who he or she is, and furnishing a concrete reason to improve. Additionally, Mr. Curie believes that a meaningful job will decrease the chance of relapse.

From SAMHSA's perspective, building partnerships and working together is the solution to sustaining treatment, facilitating recovery, and sharing common goals. Mr. Curie pointed out that the President's State of the Union Address demonstrated the seriousness of drug addiction, especially as a cause for homelessness. Addiction to drugs reduces the richness of life. In his address, the President spoke of the need to reach a greater number of people, and that there are many pathways to recovery. He announced a new treatment initiative, "Access to Recovery," as a way to address this need.

The new treatment initiative, Mr. Curie stressed, was introduced as one that would enable us to satisfy these new objectives. As a part of the President's 2004 budget proposal, the initiative provides services to people in need of substance abuse treatment through a voucher program. States are provided the flexibility to design the type of voucher that is appropriate for their system, and although the vouchers will allow treatment providers to seek reimbursement for their services, they will have no face value to the client. The vouchers are to be redeemed for care ranging in levels from brief interventions or counseling sessions, to intensive in-patient residential treatment by providers- including faith-based designation by the individual States.

This initiative allows each State to best meet its own needs through a voucher program that emphasizes "personal recovery on all dimensions." Mr. Curie expressed that although the initiative is still in the developmental stages, it will undoubtedly help to serve a greater number of needy clients, and promote the facilitation of recovery. There is still a need to discuss how to most effectively activate and implement the initiative.

2. KEYNOTE ADDRESS

Speaker: Wade F. Horn, Ph.D., Assistant Secretary for Children and Families, ACF

Moderator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

After a brief introduction from moderator Grant E. Collins II, Dr. Horn addressed the President's TANF reauthorization proposal, citing the need to support clients with substance abuse issues "toward true integration in the community." The President's reauthorization proposal recognizes that substance abuse gets in the way of parenting, destroys families, and presents unique and difficult challenges to achieving self-sufficiency.

Dr. Horn discussed the Administration's belief that States should help families on welfare move toward self-sufficiency. "Universal engagement" is a key component of the proposal.

This strategy requires an individualized plan including a strategy to address assets, challenges, and goals for every TANF client. By engaging every recipient in some meaningful activity, this will likely reveal substance abuse problems and force the barrier to be dealt with by the individual and the TANF agency. Presently, the TANF Data Reports submitted to ACF by the States reveal that 57 percent of TANF recipients are not engaged in any meaningful activities. Universal engagement is intended to support the excellent work already done by States by expanding the number of TANF recipients engaged in activities likely to support long-term self-sufficiency.

The Welfare Reform Reauthorization proposal allows for three months of drug treatment to count toward the work requirement in a 24-month period. Dr. Horn affirmed, "Sometimes the work of an individual client is to overcome a challenge, and the work of a client with substance abuse is to overcome the substance abuse issue so that person can move into employment activities." Even after the three months of full-time drug treatment are exhausted, up to 16 hours of treatment (out of the required 40 hour work-week) will be countable as participation in work activities. Because the Administration recognizes that some clients might need more than the three months of continuous, full-time treatment, the proposal does not require a 100 percent work participation rate. This provides States with the necessary flexibility to deal with longer-term treatment cases.

States challenged several aspects of the President's TANF reauthorization proposal as creating unrealistic work expectations. In response, Dr. Horn noted that although this proposal requires change, "We think there is value in providing incentive to the States, in partnership with us, in moving toward this concept of 'universal engagement,' and moving toward this idea of orientating people toward full-time work, while at the same time providing States with the flexibility to structure this program to meet the needs of persons with special issues." Dr. Horn was convinced that based upon the performance in the past few years, States would be able to implement these new ideas with even greater success. Additionally, he noted that his role was to ensure that States were doing a good job, and to further encourage the States to continue being successful and innovative.

Following Dr. Horn's talk, the floor was opened for participants to ask questions. Several of the questions asked for points of clarification on how specifically the treatment program would work, and how the vouchers would be issued. Mr. Curie responded by stating that a Request for Application (RFA) has been developed to be released when the funds are appropriated, which should be the Fall of 2003. State Governors will be the eligible applicants because the Governors have the most influence over the departments and therefore can assure that the vouchers reach the necessary clients. Six-hundred million dollars has been requested by the President to fund the voucher initiative over a three-year period.

3. STATES: ON THE FOREFRONT OF RECOVERY & SELF-SUFFICIENCY

Speakers: Flo Stein, Chief of Community Policy Implementation and Management, North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services (MH/DD/SAS)

Helen Wolstenholme, Women's Treatment Coordinator, North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, MH/DD/SAS

Peggy Powers, Deputy Associate Director, Illinois Department of Human Services, Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse

Carla H. Sheppard, Senior Public Service Administrator, Illinois Department of Human Services

Farilyn Ballard, Chief Operating Office, Oklahoma Department of Human Services

Ben Brown, Deputy Commissioner, Substance Abuse Services, Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services

Stephanie Colston, M.A., Special Assistance to the Administrator, SAMHSA

Andy Bush, Director, OFA, ACF

Facilitator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates

Moderator: Marcia Salovitz, TANF Program Specialist, OFA, ACF

During this session, three States—North Carolina, Illinois, and Oklahoma—provided brief overviews of program models in their own States that have worked to address the issues of engagement, work activities in the treatment setting, and providing TANF services to participants with substance abuse issues. Representatives from the three States were given the opportunity to present the structure of their TANF and substance abuse treatment collaborations. These presentations were a prelude to an open dialogue with the audience around these and related issues.

3.1 North Carolina

Work First, which began in July 1995, is North Carolina's plan to help families stay off welfare or move off welfare and into jobs. Ms. Stein noted that in order to carry out the original plan, there were over 200 people who served on committees to evaluate what was needed. In 1996, the Substance Abuse Services Section was invited to participate in a State level Task Force

to develop the Work First State Plan in North Carolina. A sub-committee of this Task Force was designated to develop a plan to address substance abuse issues in the Work First population. A 1995 North Carolina Household Survey found that 33 percent of adults who were in need of comprehensive treatment, had received AFDC, SSI, food stamps and/or had no health insurance coverage. The sub-committee had to develop a plan to help to serve this under-identified and under-served population. The substance abuse sub-committee was made up of State and local representatives from both Substance Abuse and Social Services. From the beginning, substance abuse joined TANF. The commitment of the two agencies was necessary for any great collaboration.

An implementation plan was developed to provide screening, assessment, referral, and care coordination. The goal of this plan was to provide early identification of Work First applicants and recipients with substance abuse or dependency diagnoses and refer them to the appropriate level of care in order to assist them with becoming self-sufficient. Ms. Stein expressed that this "front-end screening" ensured that those who were most needy would not be left behind.

Ms. Wolstenholme noted that the move to universal screening has continued to be important for the commitment of both sides. Furthermore, the addition of the Mutual Responsibility Act made it clear that support services needed to be identified. In 1997, a North Carolina law passed requiring any applicant or current recipient of Work First Program benefits, determined to be addicted to alcohol or drugs and in need of professional substance abuse treatment, to participate in treatment in order to receive Work First benefits. The law requires that a Qualified Substance Abuse Professional (QSAP) or a physician make this determination. This substance abuse treatment requirement is a part of the Mutual Responsibility Agreement (MRA) signed by the Work First recipient as a condition of receiving Work First benefits. Any applicant or recipient who fails to meet the requirements of the law is ineligible for cash assistance but remains in the Work First Family Assistance case.

The initial screening instrument that was identified by the Department of Social Services was eventually administered by QSAPs. Ms. Wolstenholme noted that the number of TANF clients identified as having substance abuse issues immediately doubled when the QSAPs administered the screening instrument. Today, QSAPs are outstationed in all of the county DSS offices to provide assessments, referral, consultation, and care coordination. Additionally, TANF applicants are now screened for mental health issues, and a behavioral checklist is used for post screening.

Ms. Wolstenholme expressed, "I cannot emphasize the importance of collaborative training enough." She attributed the successes of the programs with the strength of the collaboration among the agencies.

North Carolina's Successes

- 1. Commitment at the highest levels of both DSS and SAS
- 2. State legislation mandating universal screening and the provision of treatment services
- 3. Inclusion of substance abuse treatment as part of the MRA
- 4. Development of State and local level Memoranda of Agreement to improve services to TANF clients with substance abuse issues
- 5. Substance abuse treatment programs that provide self-sufficiency skills training are poised for the next step of counting treatment as work
- 6. Work First/Substance Abuse Collaboration Training curriculum.

North Carolina's Lessons Learned

- 1. Collaboration is an evolving process
- 2. Funding is always an issue
- 3. The initiative is more successful when the QSAP is stationed at DSS and identifies with DSS Mission and Goals
- 4. Screening by QSAPs is more successful than screening by DSS caseworkers
- 5. Partnership requires access to all Work First partners and not just DSS and SAS.

3.2 Illinois

Ms. Peggy Powers addressed the participants with the Illinois Department of Human Services Mission Statement: "To assist Illinois residents in achieving self-sufficiency, independence, and health to the maximum extent possible by providing integrated familyoriented services, promoting prevention, and establishing measurable outcomes, in partnership with communities." Ms. Powers continued with the history of Illinois collaboration between the substance abuse and TANF offices. In 1996, State legislation mandated that the Department of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse and the Department of Public Aid collaborate on an initiative to develop a mechanism to screen, assess, and refer AFDC clients to substance abuse treatment as a part of a self-sufficiency activity. State dollars were allocated to secure sufficient treatment slots and the initiative began in five AFDC field offices. Substance abuse treatment clinicians were housed onsite to facilitate the assessment and referral process. Illinois received a waiver through the Federal Department of Health and Human Services 1115 process to support alcohol and substance abuse treatment as a job readiness component. The waiver also allowed JOBS supportive service dollars (child care and transportation) to be used for AFDC adults in treatment.

The pre-TANF planning process between the two State agencies provided the philosophy and foundation for supporting self-sufficiency as a goal within comprehensive substance abuse treatment. Following the historic process of the collaboration, Ms. Sheppard noted that Illinois had certainly "fulfilled their mission."

Key Components

- 1. The development of staff cross-training materials, local office screening forms, and turnaround documents as a result of the planning between TANF and substance abuse agencies
- 2. Established communication through co-location of clinical treatment staff in TANF offices statewide, multidisciplinary staffings focused on progression through treatment to self-sufficiency, and periodic review of referral and follow-up procedures on the local level
- 3. Identification of appropriate substance abuse treatment providers available through desktop automation of resource information
- 4. Integrated treatment goals with other activities in the TANF client's self-sufficiency plan
- 5. Establishment of contractual language defining TANF eligible persons, and mandating their priority assessment and expedited placement in treatment
- 6. Established initial training of more than 3,000 TANF field staff to support the identification and referral of clients to assessment and treatment
- 7. Regular cross-training that includes both TANF staff and treatment providers to reinforce the collaborative
- 8. The appropriation of State funding by the Illinois General Assembly to be used solely for TANF eligible families' treatment

9. Providing a range of services including recovery homes for women and children, methadone treatment, and early intervention services for children from substance affected environments.

Ms. Sheppard also noted, "Today, we think we are not *at* perfection." She also pointed out that referrals to the substance abuse agency are increasing monthly. Ms. Powers joined in to express that the stigma associated with substance abuse needs to be reduced, and that the concept of substance abuse as a disease needs to be recognized. "These notions," she stated, "are at the foundation of what the staff does under our collaboration."

Illinois' Successes

- 1. The Illinois Department of Human Services Mission Statement embodies the purpose of "Achieving Common Goals"
- 2. An Illinois Legislative mandate, supported by an 1115 waiver from DHHS, formalized the public assistance and substance abuse treatment collaboration pre-Federal welfare reform
- 3. Jointly developed forms, policies and procedures reinforce the common goal of selfsufficiency. Automated referrals and an online resource directory have enhanced local office staff's ability to refer for treatment
- 4. Cross training of treatment providers and TANF line staff is occurring statewide to reinforce our common goal of self-sufficiency within the context of substance abuse treatment
- 5. Illinois has examined the substance abuse treatment and work outcomes of persons served by both systems. The TANF *Treatment Outcomes Project* was funded jointly and planned collaboratively between the two disciplines.

Illinois Lessons Learned

- 1. Importance of impressing and educating the line TANF staff with the disease concept of addiction
- 2. Cross training is an ongoing need on all fronts, both for TANF staff, as well as treatment providers
- 3. Resources are scarce in today's world, but there's a significant disparity between treatment resources in rural settings as opposed to urban areas.

3.3 Oklahoma

Ms. Farilyn Ballard of the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKDHS) said that there was no legislation in Oklahoma that mandated a collaboration between the substance abuse and TANF agencies. In fact, the collaboration arose from the recognition that those who were still on TANF after a number of years were those who had additional challenges—primarily substance abuse issues. Ms. Ballard emphasized that the substance abuse and mental health services offered by the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services (ODMHSAS) needed to be considered as a part of each TANF recipient's individual employability plan.

Ms. Ballard also presented a brief history of Oklahoma's collaborative. During a 1997 session of the legislature, a sub-committee of the Oklahoma House of Representatives targeted new legislation toward TANF clients with substance abuse problems. In response, the OKDHS requested a period of time to develop a statewide approach to addressing substance abuse for TANF families. In 1998, the State determined that upward of 30 percent of clients receiving TANF were also in need of substance abuse treatment. During this period of time, the State had to develop a plan to help to serve this under-identified and under-served population. Oklahoma composed a report focusing on the needs of substance-abusing TANF clients, and submitted it to the legislature in March of 1998.

Presently, there is over \$3 million in their contract between OKDHS and ODMHSAS, with the intent to purchase specific services for the client, such as: screening, assessment, and treatment services. "The DHS gave a priority to substance abuse in our agency," stated Ms. Ballard. It is critical to view the two agencies as partners, and although this is not always easy, "it really gets down to relationships." State and local level communication and coordination were key for Oklahoma's collaborative.

The collaborative's components were also discussed in brief. An implementation plan was designed to blend training and treatment in order to hold participants accountable. The goal of this plan was to address the challenges of putting to work adults with complex service needs including substance abuse which impedes their getting and keeping jobs. The key objective is the promotion of self-sufficiency among TANF clients.

Strategies were developed at the local and State levels to address substance abuse among TANF clients and to provide services and supports for families in need. The local strategies focused on increasing collaboration among the agencies in order to maximize the community's strengths and resources to meet the needs of the workforce, and to fashion creative solutions that meet local needs.

State Level Strategies

- 1. Providing technical assistance to local partners in the development of a common protocol for screening, assessment, and employability planning
- 2. Providing a policy framework making participation in treatment consistent with level of care a condition of eligibility
- 3. Providing the avenues for use of drug testing at assessment and as part of the treatment
- 4. Developing agreements with partnering agencies that support collaboration
- 5. Providing training that supports the collaboration by "training the trainers" and joint statewide training across the partnering programs
- 6. Assisting the communities in the development of an integrated service delivery system that include both TANF and child welfare
- 7. Developing outcome measures to establish a baseline of acceptable performance tied specifically to employment and the safety of children.

As a result of these comprehensive strategies, the DHS purchased a curriculum devised in California, and contracted with the Oklahoma Department of Mental Health & Substance Abuse Services to develop trainers and provide training on the "Sacramento County Alcohol and Other Drug Treatment Initiative." The DHS case managers and social workers in all counties of Oklahoma were trained, and training is now required for all new workers.

Mr. Brown discussed components of the collaborative, stating, "For our system, this money is a perfect opportunity to build a system of cooperation with substance abuse treatment services. It is an opportunity to work off the same page."

Key Components

- 1. Assigning Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselors (CADC) to work with TANF and Child Welfare participants and their families
- 2. Providing a network of substance abuse treatment providers who will screen and assess TANF and Child Welfare participants within a specified time period in every county
- 3. Implementing the Substance Abuse Subtle Screening Inventory (SASSI) and the Addiction Severity Index (ASI) for screening and assessment
- 4. Providing training for the implementation of the screening and assessment tools

- 5. Implementing established guidelines based on the size of the county's caseload, frequency of certifications, families entering the Child Welfare system, and other county considerations for regular screenings and assessments
- 6. Providing a Customer Satisfaction Survey to be utilized by each contracted treatment Vendor
- 7. Conducting on-site reviews of each substance abuse treatment program annually for the purpose of monitoring achievement of treatment goals, purposes, and objectives, and fiscal compliance to assure adherence to the approved treatment program
- 8. Providing quarterly quality control mechanisms to ensure minimum standards of substance abuse treatment are met in all levels of care serving TANF families by reviewing the quality of administration and evaluation of screening and assessments.

Key Points Addressed

- 1. A need for substance abuse treatment services for OKDHS
- 2. A partnership between OKDHS and ODMHSAS
- 3. Priority and visibility of substance abuse issues within OKDHS
- 4. Highlights of contrast between OKDHS and ODMHSAS.

Challenges Addressed by OKDHS

- 1. Maximizing existing resources and finding new ones
- 2. Building capacity/infrastructure issues in rural areas
- 3. Changing mindsets within the agency and among the partners
- 4. Developing new definitions of work that overcome the increasing unemployment.

Opportunities Created by the Initiative

- 1. To provide accountability
- 2. To build a relationship with DHS and other county offices
- 3. To instill "best practices" into service delivery
- 4. To really focus on 'Gender Sensitive' treatment for women

- 5. To help our providers understand and utilize gender sensitive treatment for women (changing the mindset).
- 6. To build and strengthen our State treatment system
- 7. To develop a holistic approach evidenced by unique services offered to family members with an emphasis on children's treatment
- 8. To make services accessible in all counties (building capacity)
- 9. To properly assess for substance use, abuse, and dependence and determine appropriate levels of care
- 10. To provide training in all areas and levels to providers, DHS staff, and partners.

Following the showcases from the three States, Ms. Stephanie Colston summarized the main themes that she felt stood out in the presentations. These common themes included:

- 1. Opportunity
- 2. Flexibility
- 3. Goal orientation
- 4. Monitoring
- 5. Relating to a common message
- 6. Building partnerships with the community
- 7. Learning the different cultures
- 8. Extending the communication.

Mr. Bush summarized what he felt were the seven most prominent themes from the TANF perspective:

- 1. Issues of detection
- 2. Thinking about the flow (the client's perspective)
- 3. Thinking through "what is the program?"
- 4. Knowing the caseload capacity
- 5. Issues of network availability

- 6. Communication—especially in the information systems between the agencies
- 7. Performance management: thinking about service providers and work providers who is making the progress and why? Who is not?

Facilitator Kent Peterson followed up on these themes through a group activity, with sets of questions for each agency to answer independently and in collaboration with their State partner. After the activity, Mr. Peterson addressed the question: *Where are the most important pressure points to really integrating substance abuse and TANF?* Some answers by the participants included:

- 1. Balancing of treatment with good work activities
- 2. Feeling stiff opposition from within the communities—TANF and Substance Abuse
- 3. Providing cross-training to address multi-dimensional challenges.

Mr. Peterson, in a recapture of statements, suggested that each of the partners had to really think differently about solving these issues. He stressed the need that each one come to the table to collaborate with an open mind to change the way they go about their business. Only then, he stated would an honest partnership prevail.

4. CONFERENCE LUNCHEON—TANF PART II: PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE

Speaker: Don Winstead, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Human Services Policy, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation

Moderator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

Mr. Winstead opened his remarks with a historical overview of welfare. Prior to 1996, the estimates of prevalence of substance use by welfare recipients varied widely—most estimates ranged between 10 and 20 percent. The percentages varied depending on the substance, how detailed the questionnaire was, and the definition of "use" or "abuse." Welfare offices generally did not screen or assess recipients for substance use. However, if the recipient identified his or herself as needing substance abuse treatment, AFDC offices would refer them to treatment. Further, the work requirements under AFDC were not as stringent as those under TANF, and most AFDC recipients were not required to participate in work activities under JOBS. Similarly, many recipients were categorically exempt from work requirements and States did not have enough funding to serve all those who were non-exempt.

Under TANF, the work requirements are quite different. States may choose to exempt participants with substance abuse or other issues, but these exempted clients are still counted for the calculation of the participation rates. Mr. Winstead conveyed that work requirements can be an effective tool for identifying substance abuse.

Despite anecdotal reports that the caseload has become harder to serve, the most commonly measured characteristics of the caseload—race, age, education, family size, etc.—remain mostly unchanged. Mr. Winstead stated that at this point, the evidence is not there to support the claim that the caseload is mostly hard-to-serve because there are still a lot of people "coming through the front door." The caseloads may be going down, but there are still many new cases, and a constant refreshing of families. Therefore the caseload is still a heterogeneous mixture of short-term and long-term recipients. Surveys conducted by the University of Michigan, ASPE, and Mathematica were cited that identified only 3 percent of their welfare caseload as being dependent on drugs. This figure was calculated after multiple questions were asked, indicating the severity of substance dependence.

TANF funds may be spent on any activity that promotes one of the purposes of the program, which includes barrier reduction activities like substance abuse treatment. However, only State Maintenance of Effort (MOE) funds may be spent on medical services. TANF and MOE funds can be used to co-locate substance abuse counselors in welfare offices, to reduce waiting lists for treatment, and to provide services that are otherwise unavailable in the community (such as combined substance abuse and mental health services).

The States of Florida and New Jersey operate some promising practices in substance abuse treatment. Florida has expanded eligibility for TANF services for families with income up to 200 percent of the poverty level. Additionally, Florida has simplified eligibility for TANF services and permits required participation in substance abuse treatment to substitute for the work requirement.

Florida's "EZ eligibility process" consists of a one-page eligibility form with four questions that screen for eligibility. The back of the page has income charts that assist applicants in determining financial eligibility. According to Mr. Winstead, this form has been "pretty well received" and "most of the clients can do it, and can understand it."

Five counties in Florida used the Substance Abuse Subtle Screening Inventory (SASSI), administered by substance abuse professionals, to screen for substance abuse. Using the SASSI, all new applicants are screened and required to successfully complete treatment, if referred. Mr. Winstead discussed the high cost of using substance abuse professionals in TANF offices. He stated, "This is probably not the most cost effective way to determine who needs treatment.

However, there is a need to concentrate on substance abuse." Through requiring participation in work activities, previously "hidden," substance abuse issues can be identified and individuals can receive needed treatment.

In New Jersey, two program models were rigorously compared to measure impact: the Care Coordination model (CC), and the Intensive Case Management model (ICM). The CC model provides clinical assessment, referrals to appropriate substance abuse treatment, and a utilization review. The ICM model provides more active outreach and engagement measures, assessment and linkage to wraparound services, active coordination of treatment and employment services, and monetary awards for treatment attendance. Upon analytical comparisons of the models, it was established that ICM was more effective in engaging clients in treatment, but that neither model produced the hoped for employment outcomes.

By using these vivid examples of State models being implemented and tested, Mr. Winstead drew conclusions as to the "lessons we think we're learning." First, we need to design better work activities that include employment counseling and training while clients are in substance abuse treatment. Also, States need better coordination so that clients make a smooth transition from substance abuse treatment to other work activities. Finally, more ongoing research in the field to determine additional needs and resources is needed.

TANF reauthorization has begun to build on these lessons. For example, the President's proposal continues current levels of funding, yet increases the State flexibility. In Fiscal Year 2001, less than half of TANF adults participated in any countable work activity. This lack of work is addressed in the President's proposal. The proposal requires that all TANF recipients have a plan developed that addresses their barriers to self-sufficiency. Substance abuse counseling and rehabilitation treatment, which are not counted under current law, could meet the participation requirements for up to three-months in a 24-month period.

Looking to the future, Mr. Winstead expressed hope that TANF reauthorization would lead to full engagement in meaningful activities. He hoped that reauthorization would lead to stronger participation requirements and the ability to provide short-term treatment, where appropriate. It is necessary that reauthorization lead to the ability to combine work activity with ongoing treatment, rehabilitation, training, and education, depending on the needs of the individuals. And finally, the ultimate goal and objective of reauthorization is improved outcomes and better results for low-income families.

5. ACHIEVING COMMON GOALS

Facilitators: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

José A. Rivera, J.D., President, Rivera, Sierra, and Company

Moderators: Sharon Amatetti, Public Health Analyst, SAMHSA/CSAT

Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates

During this session, the TANF and substance abuse treatment representatives were separated into two different breakout rooms—one for TANF administrators and the other for substance abuse professionals. Each working group had a facilitator and a moderator. Mr. Grant Collins spearheaded the discussion on TANF reauthorization and work requirements in one breakout room, while Mr. José Rivera lead the dialogue regarding integrated work/treatment models in the other. The task before each group was three-fold: (1) to identify specific challenges to collaboration with their State partner; (2) to outline potential resolutions to these challenges from their perspective, and; (3) to define, if appropriate, the role that Federal government can play in the moving State collaboration forward. This activity gave representatives of each discipline the opportunity to meet with other administrators and professionals in their specific field, and provided a venue for relaxed dialogue during which similar agencies could develop strategies to overcome the outlined challenges. For approximately an hour, each audience met with the facilitator/moderator.

5.1 Part I: Working with TANF Representatives

The following highlights the discussion among TANF representatives regarding both TANF work requirements and developing effective integrated work/treatment models. These sessions were designed to promote interaction among the TANF representatives across States. Three guiding "readiness" questions were posed to keep in mind:

- 1. In regard to the local and implementation barriers, what are the policy practices that remain a challenge in your State to combining treatment and work and how do time limits factor in this?
- 2. What are potential solutions to addressing these implementation barriers?
- 3. What can the Federal Government do to help you move forward to meeting these challenges?

Challenges Expressed by the TANF Professionals

- 1. How to keep score of the three months
- 2. The costs of treatment
- 3. Fair Labor Standards Act concerns and low-grant States
- 4. Operational questions and details of hour limits per week/month
- 5. Lack of "intensive" treatment
- 6. Integrating programs to treatment to meet real work experiences
- 7. Using and understanding the flexibility of "3 months" and in defining work
- 8. Transportation issues
- 9. Multiple need clients and convenient access (rural v. urban areas)
- 10. Intensity of case management and reporting requires additional budget crunching
- 11. Stretching TANF dollars further: receiving same amount of money but needing additional resources
- 12. Redirecting SAMHSA for vocational services
- 13. "Our side" versus "their side" needing the common goals to be established to work as a partnership
- 14. Participation rates and disregards
- 15. Real-time connection to labor market (present lack of jobs).

TANF Professionals' Suggestions on How the Federal Government Can Help

- 1. By leading data reporting reform efforts
- 2. Providing more money to increase performance bonuses
- 3. Recognizing that many families who are not receiving cash assistance are being helped, but are not included in the overall numbers reported of State expenditures related to "roles" and others served
- 4. Providing States with examples of "universal engagement"
- 5. Providing help with transportation.

5.2 Part II: Working with Substance Abuse Treatment Representatives

Facilitators: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

Jose A. Rivera, J.D., Consultant, Rivera, Sierra, and Company

Moderators: Sharon Amatetti, Public Health Analyst, SAMHSA/CSAT

Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates

The sessions with the representatives from the substance abuse agencies were similarly structured with three guiding questions.

- 1. What opportunities do you see with regard to the Administration's focus on "Universal Engagement?"
- 2. Do you see these activities as blended or linear?
- 3. What policy or practice challenges do you see? What can be done if we are to be successful?

Opportunities Brought Forth by Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals

- 1. Concurrent programming for those with additional needs
- 2. Realistic and intriguing connections
- 3. "Braiding" with Child Protective Services
- 4. Seeing the three months as an additional revenue
- 5. Opportunity to enhance co-location.

Challenges Posed by Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals

- 1. The legislation assumes that there is room to expand; it does not consider the huge waitlists that substance abuse providers already have
- 2. The lack of programs and staff
- 3. Time concerns regarding treatment ends, tracking, data, and record-keeping
- 4. Understanding new connections, job programs, etc. will require additional staff time
- 5. Care must be taken so that confidentiality requirements are not violated when information is shared between the two agencies

- 6. Problem defining "work"
- 7. Payer of last resort.

Suggestions by the Participants for Moving Forward

- 1. A change of mindset on the Local and Regional levels of TANF
- 2. Consistent implementation
- 3. asy guidelines for straightforward interpretation.

Suggestions by the Substance Abuse Professionals on How the Federal Government Can Help

- 1. Handle the assistance between the agencies regarding the definition and clarity of fiscal balances
- 2. Provide follow-up training
- 3. Assist with the tracking process (the forms and monitoring)
- 4. Provide guidelines on computerized statewide systems

6. ACTION PLAN ASSIGNMENTS & DAY ONE ROUNDUP

Panel: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

Ulonda Shamwell, Director of Policy Coordination, Office of Policy Planning and

Budget, SAMHSA

Facilitator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates

Moderator: Lois Bell, Director, Division of State and Territory TANF Management,

OFA, ACF

Following the Breakout Sessions, Mr. Peterson presented the participants with a "homework assignment" for the evening. Because the purpose of this national conference was to enhance the relationship between State TANF and substance abuse treatment agencies, the instructions were to develop an action plan. This required TANF and substance abuse agencies of the same State to set clear policy objectives, and work together to develop common goals. By building on the day's sessions, the participants were asked to strategize with their State

counterpart(s) to begin the development of an action plan that would identify plausible strategies, including timelines and performance indicators.

Mr. Collins summarized the first day by recapturing many of the common themes expressed. He explained that this was precisely what the conference was attempting to do: to work together to reach common objectives. Thanking the three individual States that showcased their programs for the participants to learn from, he noted that there is always room to improve our systems. He also expressed the need for leadership from those at the conference to truly work collaboratively to achieve these common goals and committed the Federal government to help in any way possible to move this agenda forward. The facilitators provided many suggestions to the participants concerning operational issues. One participant stated, "We are still in the process of implementation and development, and not quite to the operational details. These ideas you are providing are good to keep in mind." In closing, Mr. Collins provided a final wrap-up of the session and thanked everyone for their hard work and participation.

Ms. Bell took a moment to explain the function and usefulness of the Welfare Peer Technical Assistance Network Web site (<u>http://peerta.acf.hhs.gov</u>), and the services and resources that it provides. In closing, Ms. Shamwell noted that the agenda was designed to motivate participants, and to provide additional knowledge. She affirmed, "It is time to look at this as a new paradigm. It really opens lots of opportunities…"

7. FACILITATOR'S REPORT

Questions and Answers: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

Jose A. Rivera, J.D., Consultant, Rivera, Sierra, and Company

Moderator: Marcia Salovitz, TANF Program Specialist, OFA, ACF

Mr. Collins welcomed the participants to the final day of the Achieving Common Goals conference. Together, he and Mr. Rivera recaptured what they believed to be the heart of the breakout sessions the previous day. For the TANF administrators, the emphasis and concern surrounded questions about the legislation and technical details of the reauthorization proposal. TANF administrators were asking, "How do we accommodate these changes, yet continue to perform our requirements?" Meanwhile, the substance abuse treatment professionals had issues regarding reaching universal engagement with the TANF population in need of substance abuse treatment. The substance abuse treatment professionals expressed their desire to embrace the concept, however were asking the question "How?" Mr. Collins noted that the obvious interest in the operational questions really proved that the participants were really thinking about what

works, and what could work. Together, Mr. Collins and Mr. Rivera addressed the previous day's questions and concerns.

Shared Issues among TANF and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals

- 1. Defining what treatment activities can and should be considered as "work activities"
- 2. Developing concurrent work activities for outpatient treatment consumers
- 3. Configuring treatment to take maximum advantage of the three-month allowance
- 4. Case managing/monitoring of treatment's use of the three-month allowance
- 5. Providing incentives for treatment to incorporate "work activities" into treatment
- 6. Addressing the multiple issue customer whose needs exceed the three-month allowance
- 7. Exploring who should pay for post-treatment relapse prevention support for TANF participants
- 8. Negotiating the disputes that arise between clinical case managers and social services case managers, and treatment plans versus self-sufficiency plans.

In closing, Mr. Collins noted that many operational issues are left to be resolved. He stated, "You are the leaders who will be given the responsibility of dealing with these things. Many of these issues must be solved at the local level. We have provided the framework." Additionally, Mr. Rivera confirmed that there are multiple levels and layers of treatment that differ by State: "This is really an attempt to recognize work—to recognize preexisting activity." They challenged the audience to continue to work together to overcome these barriers to collaboration.

Participants also shared comments with the moderators. One participant from Louisiana stated, "As a result of this conference, one of the major goals that we've set with our TANF partners is to go back and begin looking at a plan that is acceptable to both agencies in terms of how we can modify our treatment regime. I think this been a major accomplishment of the conference for us, and I want to thank you for that."

8. COMMITMENT TO CHANGE: REVIEW OF ACTION PLANS

Panel: Andrew S. Bush, Director, OFA, ACF

Stephanie Colston, M.A., Special Assistance to the Administrator (SAMHSA)

Sharon Amatetti, Public Health Analyst, SAMHSA/CSAT

Facilitator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates

Moderator: Mack Storrs, Senior Policy Analyst, OFA, ACF

Mr. Peterson addressed the conference participants by explaining that he had glanced through the State's action plan assignments. He expressed that it was interesting to observe the uniqueness and the distinctions in the plans. Dividing the room into sections, Mr. Peterson posted randomly selected goals from anonymous Action Plans. Mr. Peterson asked the participants to respond to these goals by answering the following questions:

- 1. If the goal statement is really important?
- 2. Is the goal statement too broad?
- 3. Is it inclusive of all stakeholders?
- 4. Is it countable—can we measure if we are successful?

8.1 Sample Goal One: To Increase the Number of TANF/SA Clients Moving Toward Self-sufficiency

Participants felt that this goal largely depended on the commitment level that your State wants to make. It was agreed that in order to meet this goal, numerous steps needed to be taken. Randomly distributed strategies were presented to further facilitate discussion on this goal. States identified that in order to improve access to services it would be beneficial for counselors to be co-located with the local Office of Child Support Enforcement. This would operate to engage workers, and increase cross-appreciation. Similarly, it would help to identify needy clients and additional resources. Another strategy offered by States included refining the definition of services for which TANF can pay for. States expressed that this piece is important, especially where substance abuse is not defined, nor paid for by TANF. It was demonstrated that this strategy is powerful leverage to a compelling statewide strategy, and program delivery.

8.2 Sample Goal Two: Complete Drug/Alcohol Screening on All TANF Participants at the Time of Initial Review

Many States felt that this was an action step rather than a goal. Still, one strategy developed to meet this goal included requiring clients to sign the appropriate releases of information to mental health care providers, if and when a referral is made. Several States indicated that this was already a part of their process. Some States emphasized the importance of communication in the follow-through of this strategy. What is important in one group has to be communicated across in a way that demonstrates the benefits to the other group. A second

strategy proposed to meet this goal is to have a TANF coordinator make an appropriate referral to the Mental Health provider and include the requirement of the compliance with the treatment plan in the overall employability plan. States expressed that the challenge with this strategy was often seen at local level barriers with providers, and in the differing understanding of the importance of treatment.

8.3 Sample Goal Three: Establish a TANF/Office of Substance Abuse Services Statelevel Collaboration To Develop Strategies To Identify, Assess, and Treat TANF Families Affected by Substance Abuse

The conference participants articulated that in order for this sample goal to operate, other work groups need to focus in on the details regarding which strategies should be employed and implemented. If the overall goal here is to serve individuals in need, then one ought to be specific about what defines need. This largely depends on where the State is on this topic. Two strategies were presented. First, to obtain executive-level mandates for the collaborative; second, to gather common stakeholders and develop vision, mission, common goals, and strategic initiatives.

8.4 Sample Goal Four: Develop an Integrated Services Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

Once again, States felt that this goal was in itself more of a strategy. MOUs have to be very specific in order to be useful. An MOU is more powerful when the common goal and overlays are stated clearly, and the rules of reporting are established. Two strategies were identified: first, to develop a draft MOU for services integration and coordination; and second, to present the MOU for adoption by agencies.

8.5 Sample Goal Five: Determine Specific Treatment Activities that can be Defined as Work

In reaction to this sample goal, a discussion surfaced regarding the Federal participation rate. Participants claimed that they felt the program should be designed to meet the needs of individuals and to produce individual outcomes, not to meet the Federal participation rates. Two strategies were presented by participating States, however were not fully addressed due to time constraints. The first strategy was to sample the percentage of substance abuse site visit reports, and compare these to TANF-defined work activities. The second strategy was to develop guidelines with substance abuse providers to define work activities.

Following the group interaction, Ms. Amatetti responded, "I like how all of the goals are a commitment." Similarly, Mr. Bush noted, "There is always a tension with goal setting. We

always need to start with process goals—which are the engines in the overall change. Do not lose your ambition on the broader objective: to help every client we can to achieve self-sufficiency."

Next Steps as Defined by States

- 1. Addressing budget cuts
- 2. Working more closely with the Substance Abuse/Mental Health partners
- 3. Reviewing operating programs and deciding what is most effective
- 4. Bringing together the leaders of the different agencies
- 5. Restarting RFP for the Criminal Justice side
- 6. Bringing providers together to see how TANF can pay for substance abuse services
- 7. Accessing technical assistance
- 8. Highlighting the best practices of TANF-work activities for replication
- 9. Asking for additional Federal support
- 10. Ensuring understanding at the local level
- 11. Emphasizing importance at the local level
- 12. Reviewing current programs and meet to discuss goals
- 13. Heading toward universal engagement by creating concrete linkages to treatment and jobs
- 14. Renewing memoranda of understanding/agreement
- 15. Increasing frequency of directors meetings.

Mr. Storrs briefly compared the welfare system of today to the welfare system before TANF, noting that the focus is now on the family outcomes, whereas before the focus was on the process. The next phase needs to be centered on outcomes for children, education outcomes need to be tracked, and engagement of both parents is needed. "Now, it is literally about what the community is doing. It is no longer about what TANF is doing."

9. CONFERENCE CLOSING AND FINAL THOUGHTS

Panel: Andrew S. Bush, Director, OFA, ACF

Stephanie Colston, M.A., Special Assistant to the Administrator, SAMHSA

Moderator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Program Officer, OFA, ACF

This conference provided both State TANF and substance abuse treatment administrators with the opportunity to share their experiences and concerns, and to build and strengthen their partnerships with one another. Through a variety of sessions that ranged from Federal presentations, State showcases, cluster breakout sessions, and action plan assignments, the conference provided a forum to learn, to build, and to collaborate. The agenda and design of the conference were driven by the co-sponsoring agencies: Department of Health and Human Services' Administration for Children and Families and Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration.

To bring the conference to a close Mr. Collins noted that the States are doing fantastic jobs and clearly recognizing the opportunity before them. After thanking the States for participating, Mr. Bush posed a final question, "What can [the Federal Government] do?" He expressed that ACF and SAMHSA wanted to help throughout the process by providing resources, potential site visits, and possibly another similar forum. He concluded by stating that there was no dividing difference between the goals of TANF and the goals of substance abuse treatment, although complications of the slots and resources were understandable concerns. Asking that the participants think about not short-circuiting their process, Mr. Bush encouraged the States: "Use the process as a way to drive the engine for moving the agencies along." Lastly, Mr. Bush recommended that the participating States obtain specific information about families and keep their rates and percentages up to date. Eventually, a State might bring this to the legislature to demonstrate success.

Finally, Ms. Colston thanked the participants once more and expressed her hope for more opportunities to collaborate in the future. She recognized that SAMHSA and ACF worked well together, and noted, "We are working with you to do something profound and significant."

APPENDIX A CONFERENCE AGENDA



AGENDA

Thursday, March 20, 2003

7:30 a.m 8:30 a.m.	Registration and Continental Breakfast	
8:30 a.m 9:00 a.m.	Welcoming Remarks	
	Charles G. Curie, M.A., A.C.S.W., Administrator, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)	
9:00 a.m 9:45 a.m.	Keynote Speaker	
	Wade F. Horn, Ph.D., Assistant Secretary for Children and Families, Administration for Children and Families (ACF)	
	<i>Moderator:</i> Grant E. Collins II, <i>Chief of Staff, Office of Family Assistance (OFA),</i> ACF	
9:45 a.m 10:00 a.m.	Break	
10:00 a.m 12:00 p.m.	States: On The Forefront of Recovery and Self-Sufficiency	
	Pheon Beal, Director, North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Social Services	
	Flo Stein, Chief of Community Policy Implementation and Management, North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities and Substance Abuse Services	
	Farilyn Ballard, Chief Operating Officer, Oklahoma Department of Human Services	
	Ben Brown, Deputy Commissioner, Substance Abuse Services, Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services	
	Peggie Powers, Deputy Associate Director, Illinois Department of Human Services, Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse	
	Carla H. Sheppard, Senior Public Service Administrator, Illinois Department of Human Services	
	Andrew S. Bush, Director, OFA, ACF	
	Stephenie Colston, M.A., Special Assistant to the Administrator, SAMHSA	
	Facilitator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates	
	Moderator: Marcia Salovitz, TANF Program Specialist, OFA, ACF	
	Three States will provide brief overviews of program models in their own States that have attempted to address the issues of engagement, work activities in the treatment setting, and providing TANF services to participants with substance abuse issues. These presentations will be a prelude to an open dialogue with the audience around these and related issues. Two principals will react and comment to the States presentations and audience dialogue	
12:15 p.m 1:45 p.m.	Working Lunch – TANF Part II: Prospects for the Future	
	Don Winstead, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Human Services Policy, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation	
	Moderator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief of Staff, OFA, ACF	

2:00 p.m 3:00 p.m.	Achieving Common Goals (Breakout A)			
TWO CONCURRENT	Facilitator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief of Staff, OFA, ACF			
SESSIONS	Moderator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates			
	Achieving Common Goals (Breakout B)			
	<i>Facilitator:</i> José A. Rivera, J.D., <i>Project Director, CSAT Women, Youth & Families Task Force</i>			
	Moderator: Sharon Amatetti, Public Health Analyst, SAMHSA/CSAT			
3:00 p.m 4:00 p.m.	Achieving Common Goals (Breakout A)			
TWO CONCURRENT	Facilitator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief of Staff, OFA, ACF			
SESSIONS	Moderator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates			
	Achieving Common Goals (Breakout B)			
	<i>Facilitator:</i> José A. Rivera, J.D., <i>Project Director, CSAT Women, Youth & Families Task Force</i>			
	Moderator: Sharon Amatetti, Public Health Analyst, SAMHSA/CSAT			
4:00 p.m 4:15 p.m.	m. Break			
4:15 p.m 5:00 p.m.	Commitment to Change: Action Plan Assignment			
	Facilitator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates			
	Session Roundup			
	Grant E. Collins II, Chief of Staff, OFA, ACF			
	Ulonda Shamwell, Director of Policy Coordination, Office of Policy Planning and Budget, SAMHSA			
	<i>Moderator:</i> Lois Bell, <i>Director, Division of State & Territory TANF Management,</i> OFA, ACF			
FRIDAY, MARCH 21, 200	3			
8:00 a.m 9:00 a.m.	Continental Breakfast			
9:00 a.m 9:45 a.m.	Facilitator's Report			
	Questions and Answers			
	Grant E. Collins II, Chief of Staff, OFA, ACF			
	José A. Rivera, J.D., Project Director, CSAT Women, Youth & Families Task Force			
	Moderator: Marcia Salovitz, TANF Program Specialist, OFA, ACF			
9:45 a.m 10:00 a.m.	Break			
10:00 a.m 11:30 a.m.	Commitment to Change: Review of Action Plans			
	Andrew S. Bush, <i>Director, OFA, ACF</i>			
	Stephenie Colston, M.A., Special Assistant to the Administrator, SAMHSA			
	Facilitator: Kent Peterson, Consultant, Caliber Associates			
	Moderator: Mack Storrs, Senior Policy Analyst, OFA, ACF			
	During this session, the Facilitator will randomly select action plans developed by conference participants for discussion.			
11:30 a.m 12:00 p.m.				
	Andrew S. Bush, <i>Director, OFA, ACF</i>			
	Stephenie Colston, M.A., Special Assistant to the Administrator, SAMHSA			
	Moderator: Grant E. Collins II, Chief Of Staff, OFA, ACF			

APPENDIX B CONFERENCE SPEAKERS AND PARTICIPANTS

Achieving Common Goals Arlington, VA - March 20 - 21, 2003

SPEAKERS LIST

Farilyn Ballard

Chief Operating Officer Oklahoma Department of Human Services P.O. Box 25352 Oklahoma City, OK 73125 Phone: (405) 521-6602 Fax: (405) 521-6868 E-mail: farilyn.ballard@okdhs.org

Pheon Beal

Director, Division of Social Services North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services 325 North Salisbury Street 2401 Mail Service Center, Albemarle Building Raleigh, NC 27699-2401 Phone: (919) 733-3055 Fax: (919) 733-9386 E-mail: pheon.beal@ncmail.net

Ben Brown

Deputy Commissioner, Substance Abuse Services Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services P.O. Box 53277 Oklahoma City, OK 73152-3277 Phone: (405) 522-3877 Fax: (405) 522-0637 E-mail: bbrown@odmhsas.org

Andrew S. Bush

Director, Office of Family Assistance Administration for Children and Families U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-9275 Fax: (202) 401-4746 E-mail: abush@acf.hhs.gov

Grant E. Collins II

Chief of Staff Office of Family Assistance Administration for Children and Families 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-6953 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: grcollins@acf.hhs.gov

Stephenie Colston, M.A.

Special Assistant to the Administrator Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 5600 Fishers Lane Room 12C-05 Rockville, MD 20857 Phone: (301) 443-4329 Fax: (301) 443-0284 E-mail: scolston@samhsa.gov

Charles G. Curie, M.A., A.C.S.W.

Administrator Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 5600 Fishers Lane Room 12-105 Rockville, MD 20857 Phone: (301) 443-4795 Fax: (301) 443-0284 E-mail: ccurie@samhsa.gov

Wade F. Horn, Ph.D.

Assistant Secretary for Children and Families Administration for Children and Families 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-2337 Fax: (202) 401-4678

Kent Peterson

Consultant Caliber Associates 10530 Rosehaven Street, Suite 400 Fairfax, VA 22030 Phone: (703) 385-3200 Fax: (703) 385-3206 E-mail: kentjpeterson@aol.com

Peggie Powers

Deputy Associate Director Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Illinois Department of Human Services 319 East Madison Suite 2D Springfield, IL 62701 Phone: (217) 557-6706 Fax: (217) 785-0954 E-mail: dhsd0816@dhs.state.il.us

José A. Rivera, J.D.

President & CEO Rivera, Sierra & Co., Inc. 1700 Rockville Pike Suite 110 Rockville, MD 20852 Phone: (301) 881-4700 Fax: (301) 881-4728 E-mail: jrivera@riverasierra.com

Ulonda Shamwell

Director of Policy Coordination Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Office of Policy, Planning and Budget 5600 Fishers Lane Room 12C-06 Rockville, MD 20857 Phone: (301) 443-2868 Fax: (301) 443-8964 E-mail: ushamwel@samhsa.gov

Carla H. Sheppard

Senior Public Service Administrator Illinois Department of Human Services 100 South Grand Avenue East Harris II, 2nd Floor Springfield, IL 62762 Phone: (217) 782-1239 Fax: (217) 557-5850 E-mail: dhsd4028@dhs.state.il.us

Flo Stein

Chief of Community Policy Implementation and Management
Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Substance Abuse Services
North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services
3007 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-3007
Phone: (919) 733-4670
Fax: (919) 733-9455
E-mail: flo.stein@ncmail.net

Don Winstead

Deputy Assistant Secretary for Human Services Policy Office of the Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 200 Independence Avenue, SW Room 404E Washington, DC 20201 Phone: (202) 690-7409 Fax: (202) 690-6562 E-mail: don.winstead@hhs.gov

Achieving Common Goals Arlington, VA • March 20 - 21, 2003

PARTICIPANTS LIST

ALABAMA

Sarah Harkless

Assistant Executive Director Alcohol and Drug Abuse Treatment Centers 2101 Daniel Payne Drive Birmingham, AL 35214 Phone: (205) 791-2042 Fax: (205) 791-1592 E-mail: harklessa@lycos.com

Deborah W. Wood

Director, JOBS Program Operations Alabama Department of Human Resources 50 Ripley Street Montgomery, AL 36130-4000 Phone: (334) 242-8153 Fax: (334) 242-0513 E-mail: dwood@dhr.state.al.us

ARKANSAS

Garland Ferguson

Team Leader, Treatment Services Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention 5800 West 10th Suite 907 Little Rock, AR 72204 Phone: (501) 280-4505 Fax: (501) 280-4532 E-mail: gferguson@healthyarkansas.com

Linda Greer

Assistant Director Division of County Operations Arkansas Department of Human Services P.O. Box 1437 Slot #5332 Little Rock, AR 72103 Phone: (501) 682-8257 Fax: (501) 682-1597 E-mail: linda.greer@mail.state.ar.us

CALIFORNIA

Venus Garth

Branch Chief Department of Social Services 744 P Street, MS 6-140 Sacramento, CA 95814 Phone: (916) 657-3442 Fax: (916) 654-6693 E-mail: venus.garth@dss.ca.gov

Marjorie McKisson

Manager, Program and Fiscal Policy California State Alcohol and Drug Programs 1700 K Street Sacramento, CA 95818 Phone: (916) 327-4178 Fax: (916) 323-0653 E-mail: mmckisson@adp.state.ca.us

COLORADO

Joseph Barela Workforce Policy Analyst Colorado Department of Human Services Colorado Works 1575 Sherman Street Denver, CO 80203 Phone: (303) 866-5389 Fax: (303) 866-5488 E-mail: joe.barela@state.co.us

Janet Wood

Director Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division Colorado Department of Human Services 4055 South Lowell Boulevard Denver, CO 80236 Phone: (303) 866-7486 Fax: (303) 866-7481 E-mail: janet.wood@state.co.us

DELAWARE

Barbara Hanson

Social Services Chief Administrator for Operations Delaware Division of Social Services P.O. Box 906 Lewis Building New Castle, DE 19702 Phone: (302) 255-9580 Fax: (302) 255-4454 E-mail: bhanson@state.de.us

Kimberly A. Lucas

Treatment Specialist Delaware Division of Substance Abuse and Mental Health 1901 North Dupont Highway Main Building, 1st Floor New Castle, DE 19720 Phone: (302) 255-9420 Fax: (302) 255-4428 E-mail: kilucas@state.de.us

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Maxine Blocker-Burnette

TANF Coordinator/Project Director
Addiction Prevention and Recovery Administration
1300 First Street, NE, 3rd Floor
Washington, DC 20020
Phone: (202) 727-1572
Fax: (202) 727-0092
E-mail: keraklute@aol.com

Kate Jesberg

Administrator Department of Human Services Income Maintenance Administration 645 H Street, NE, Suite 5000 Washington, DC 20002 Phone: (202) 698-3900 Fax: (202) 724-2041 E-mail: kate.jesberg@dc.gov

Kathleen M. Nardini

Senior Research Analyst National Association of State Alcohol and Drug Abuse Directors 808 17th Street, NW Suite 410 Washington, DC 20006 Phone: (202) 293-0090 Fax: (202) 293-1250 E-mail: knardini@nasadad.org

FLORIDA

Sidonie A. Squier

Welfare Reform Director Florida Department of Children and Families 1317 Winewood Boulevard Building 3, Room 102 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0700 Phone: (850) 921-5567 Fax: (850) 922-5581 E-mail: sidonie_squier@dcf.state.fl.us

GEORGIA

Vicky Darley

TANF Program Consultant DHR/DFCS 2 Peachtree Street, NW, Suite 21-202 Atlanta, GA 30303 Phone: (912) 651-7617 Fax: (912) 651-7667 E-mail: Darley.v@gomail.oas.ga.us

Taunya Lowe

TANF Coordinator Georgia Department of Human Services Division of Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities and Addictive Diseases 2 Peachtree Street, Suite 23-102 Atlanta, GA 30303 Phone: (404) 657-6412 Fax: (404) 657-2160 E-mail: talowe@dhr.state.ga.us

Sharlene Sanders

Resource Development Coordinator Department of Human Resources/Economic Support Services Section 2 Peachtree Street, Suite 21-224 Atlanta, GA 30303 Phone: (404) 657-7807 Fax: (404) 657-3755 E-mail: sasanders@dhr.ga.us

HAWAII

Terri Nakano

Program Specialist State of Hawaii Department of Health, Alcohol and Drug Abuse Division 601 Kamokila Boulevard Room 360 Kapolei, HI 96707 Phone: (808) 692-7522 Fax: (808) 692-7521 E-mail: tanakano@mail.health.state.hi.us

INDIANA

Matthew Raibley

Manager Division of Family and Children Family Support Service 402 West Washington Street Indianapolis, IN 46204 Phone: (317) 232-2002 Fax: (317) 232-4615 E-mail: mraibley@fssa.state.in.us

John Viernes

Deputy Director Indiana Division of Mental Health 402 West Washington Street Room W353 Indianapolis, IN 46204 Phone: (317) 232-7845 Fax: (317) 233-3472 E-mail: jviernes@fssa.state.in.us

KANSAS

Charles Bartlett

Policy and Project Coordinator
Kansas Department of Social and Rehabiliation Services
915 SW Harrison
State Office Building, 10th Floor North
Topeka, KS 66612
Phone: (785) 368-6391
Fax: (785) 296-7275
E-mail: ceb@srskansas.org

Erin Pettera

SRS 230 East William Wichita, KS 67201 Phone: (316) 337-7043 Fax: (316) 337-6742 E-mail: wexxp@srskansas.org

Kathy Valentine

Director SRS/Economic and Employment Support 915 S.W. Harrison 5th Floor Topeka, KS 66612 Phone: (785) 296-3349 Fax: (785) 296-6960 E-mail: sch@srskansas.org

KENTUCKY

Jason Dunn Internal Policy Analyst Cabinet for Families and Children 275 East Main Street 3W-B Frankfort, KY 40621 Phone: (502) 564-7536 Fax: (502) 564-0328 E-mail: jason.dunn@mail.state.ky.us

Elisa Klein

Women's Treatment Coordinator Kentucky Division of Substance Abuse 100 Fair Oaks Lane 4E-D Frankfort, KY 40621 Phone: (502) 564-3487 Fax: (502) 564-7152 E-mail: elisa.klein@mail.state.ky.us

LOUISIANA

Laura Beck Family Support Program Assistant Director Louisiana Department of Social Services Office of Family Support/Program Services P.O. Box 94065 Baton Rouge, LA 70804 Phone: (225) 342-2511 Fax: (225) 342-2536 E-mail: Ibeck@dss.state.la.us

LOUISIANA continued

Michael Duffy

Acting Assistant Secretary Office of Addictive Disorders P.O. Box 2790 Bin #18 Baton Rouge, LA 70821-2790 Phone: (225) 342-6717 Fax: (225) 342-3875 E-mail: mduffy@dhh.state.la.us

Nan Poston

Assistant Program Director Department of Social Services Office of Family Support/Program Policy 438 Main Street Baton Rouge, LA 70801 Phone: (225) 342-4061 Fax: (225) 342-9481 E-mail: nposton@dss.state.la.us

Quinetta Rowley

Program Coordinator Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals Office of Addictive Disorders P.O. Box 3868 Baton Rouge, LA 70821-3868 Phone: (225) 342-9682 Fax: (225) 342-3931 E-mail: qrowley@dhh.state.la.us

Sherlin Watson

Director of Treatment Services Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals Office for Addictive Disorders P.O. Box 3868 Baton Rouge, LA 70821 Phone: (225) 342-5604 Fax: (225) 342-3931 E-mail: kwatson@dhh.state.la.us

MAINE

Joanne Ogden

Manager, Treatment Division Office of Substance Abuse 159 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0159 Phone: (207) 287-2582 Fax: (207) 287-4334 E-mail: joanne.ogden@maine.gov

Judy H. M. Williams

Director Department of Human Services Bureau of Family Independence 11SHS Whitter Road Augusta, ME 04332 Phone: (207) 287-3106 Fax: (207) 287-5096 E-mail: judy.williams@maine.gov

MARYLAND

Cynthia A. Carpenter

Policy Specialist Family Investment Administration Maryland Department of Human Resources 311 West Saratoga Street Room 642 Baltimore, MD 21201 Phone: (410) 767-7495 Fax: (410) 333-6581 E-mail: cdavis@dhr.state.md.us

Michelle Strasnick

Project Coordinator Maryland Alcohol and Drug Abuse Administration 55 Wade Avenue Catonsville, MD 21228 Phone: (410) 402-8647 Fax: (410) 402-8607 E-mail: mstrasnick@dhmh.state.md.us

MASSACHUSETTS

Edward Sanders-Bey

Assistant Commissioner for Policy and Program Management Department of Transitional Assistance 600 Washington Street Boston, MA 02111 Phone: (617) 348-8412 Fax: (617) 348-8575 E-mail: ed.sanders-bey@state.ma.us

Janice M. Tracey

Women's Services Coordinator Bureau of Substance Abuse Services Massachusetts Department of Public Health 250 Washington Street 3rd Floor Boston, MA 02108 Phone: (617) 624-5120 Fax: (617) 624-5185 E-mail: janice.tracey@state.ma.us

MICHIGAN

Donald Mussen

Family Support Services Director Michigan Family Independence Agency 235 South Grand Avenue Suite 1306, P.O. Box 30037 Lansing, MI 48909 Phone: (517) 335-4323 Fax: (517) 335-7771 E-mail: mussend@michigan.gov

MISSISSIPPI

Sandra E. Giddy

Special Projects Officer IV TANF Policy Unit Mississippi Department of Human Services 750 North State Street Jackson, MS 39202 Phone: (601) 359-4790 Fax: (601) 359-4435 E-mail: sgiddy@mdhs.state.ms.us

Jessie C. Wright Needs Assessment Coordinator Mississippi State Department of Mental Health 1101 Robert E. Lee Building 239 North Lamar Street Jackson, MS 39201 Phone: (601) 359-1288 Fax: (601) 359-4040 E-mail: rightjess@hotmail.com

MONTANA

Patty Guiberson

Regional Field Manager Montana Department of Public Health and Human Services 17 West Galena Butte, MT 59711 Phone: (406) 782-4842 Fax: (406) 782-4842 E-mail: pguiberson@state.mt.us

Chuck Michaud

Chemical Dependency Administrative Officer Chemical Dependency Bureau Addictive and Mental Disorders Division State of Montana 555 Fuller Helena, MT 59601 Phone: (406) 444-7924 Fax: (406) 444-9389 E-mail: cmichaud@state.mt.us

NEBRASKA

Patricia Bergman

Employment First Administrator Health and Human Services P.O. Box 95044 Lincoln, NE 68509 Phone: (402) 471-2738 Fax: (402) 471-9597 E-mail: trish-bergman@hhss.state.ne.us

NEVADA

Shannon Coubrough

Social Welfare Program Specialist Nevada State Welfare 1470 East College Parkway Carson City, NV 89706 Phone: (775) 684-0611 Fax: (775) 684-0617 E-mail: scoubrough@welfare.state.nv.us

Layne Wilhelm

Rehabilitation Program Supervisor State of Nevada Health Division Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Abuse 505 East King Street Room 500 Carson City, NV 89701 Phone: (775) 684-4190 Fax: (775) 684-4185 E-mail: lwilhelm@nvhd.state.nv.us

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Rhonda E. Estabrook

Program Specialist Division of Family Assistance 129 Pleasant Street Concord, NH 03301 Phone: (603) 271-8189 Fax: (603) 271-4637 E-mail: restabro@dhhs.state.nh.us

Joyce Heck

Assistant Director New Hampshire Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention and Recovery 105 Pleasant Street Concord, NH 03301 Phone: (603) 271-6104 Fax: (603) 271-6116 E-mail: jheck@dhhs.state.nh.us

NEW JERSEY

Barbara DeGraaf

Assistant Director Office of County Operations Department of Human Services Division of Family Development 6 Quakerbridge Plaza, P.O. Box 716 Trenton, NJ 08625 Phone: (609) 588-2406 Fax: (609) 588-3369 E-mail: barbara.degraaf@dhs.state.nj.us

NEW MEXICO

Kathryn Falls

Director Human Services Department Income Support Division P.O. Box 2348 Santa Fe, NM 87504-2348 Phone: (505) 827-7252 Fax: (505) 827-7203 E-mail: katie.falls@state.nm.us

James Masica

TANF Coordinator New Mexico Department of Health Behavioral Health Services Division 1190 Saint Francis Drive Suite N3200 Santa Fe, NM 87505 Phone: (505) 827-2371 Fax: (505) 827-0097 E-mail: jmasica@doh.state.nm.us

NEW YORK

Frank Corgliano Addiction Program Specialist New York State Office of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse Services 1450 Western Avenue Albany, NY 12203 Phone: (518) 485-2123 Fax: (518) 485-2147

E-mail: frankcorgliano@oasas.state.ny.us

Dale J. Peterson Director Bureau of Transitional Programs New York State Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance 40 North Pearl Street Albany, NY 12243 Phone: (518) 486-3415 Fax: (518) 473-6207 E-mail: dale.peterson@dfa.state.ny.us

NORTH CAROLINA

Helen Wolstenholme

Women's Treatment Coordinator Division of MH/DD/SAS 3007 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-3007 Phone: (919) 733-4671 Fax: (919) 733-9455 E-mail: helen.wolstenholme@ncmail.net

NORTH DAKOTA

Laurie Albright

Employment Consultant North Dakota Department of Human Services 1350 32nd Street South Fargo, ND 58103 Phone: (701) 239-7331 Fax: (701) 239-7342 E-mail: lalbrigh@state.nd.us

Kathleen Moraghan

Clinical Nurse Specialist TANF Liaison North Dakota Department of Human Services Southeast Human Services Center 2624 9th Avenue, SW Fargo, ND 58103-2350 Phone: (701) 298-4520 Fax: (701) 298-4600 **E-mail:** 85mork@state.nd.us

OHIO

Paul Fraunholtz

Ohio Department of Job and Family Services 145 South Front Street 1st Floor Columbus, OH 43215 Phone: (615) 387-0115 Fax: (615) 466-1767 E-mail: fraunp@odjfs.state.oh.us

OHIO continued

Carolyn Givens

Chief Policy Advisor
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services
280 North High Street, 12th Floor
Columbus, OH 43215
Phone: (614) 644-8452
Fax: (614) 728-4936
E-mail: givens@ada.state.oh.us

OKLAHOMA

June Elkins

Substance Abuse Services Specialist Oklahoma Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services P.O. Box 53277 Oklahoma City, OK 73152-3277 Phone: (405) 522-0185 Fax: (405) 522-3767 E-mail: jelkins@odmhsas.org

Jennifer R. Glover

Programs Field Representative Substance Abuse Services/TANF Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services 1200 NE 13th P.O. Box 53277 Oklahoma City, OK 73152 Phone: (405) 522-2347 Fax: (405) 522-3767 E-mail: jglover@odmhsas.org

Kyle D. McGraw

Director of Substance Abuse Oklahoma Department of Human Services P.O. Box 25352 Oklahoma City, OK 73125 Phone: (405) 521-6602 Fax: (405) 521-6868 E-mail: kyle.mcgraw@okdhs.org

Pamela Shanklin

Programs Field Representative Oklahoma Department of Human Services P.O. Box 25352 Oklahoma City, OK 73125 Phone: (405) 521-4395 Fax: (405) 521-4158 E-mail: pamela.shanklin@okdhs.org

PENNSYLVANIA

Maureen Kozik

Program Specialist Office of Children, Youth and Families Pennsylvania Department of Public Welfare Health and Welfare Building Capitol Complex P.O. Box 2675 Harrisburg, PA 17105 Phone: (717) 772-1584 Fax: (717) 705-0364 E-mail: mkozik@state.pa.us

Robin Rothermel

Director, Division of Treatment Pennsylvania Department of Health Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Programs 2 Kline Plaza, Suite B Harrisburg, PA 17104 Phone: (717) 787-2712 Fax: (717) 787-6285 E-mail: rrothermel@state.pa.us

RHODE ISLAND

Donalda M. Carlson

Administrator Rhode Island Department of Human Services 600 New London Avenue LP Building #57 Cranston, RI 02920 Phone: (401) 462-2423 Fax: (401) 462-1846 E-mail: dcarlson@gw.dhs.state.ri.us

SOUTH DAKOTA

Robert Shaff

TANF Program Specialist South Dakota Department of Labor 700 Governors Drive Pierre, SD 57501 Phone: (605) 773-4999 Fax: (605) 773-4211 E-mail: bob.shaff@state.sd.us

TEXAS

Catherine "Judy" Brow

Specialized Female Services Coordinator and TANF Liason Texas Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Box 80529 Austin, TX 78708-0529 Phone: (572) 349-6626 Fax: (572) 821-4481 E-mail: judy.brow@tcada.stag.tx.us

George McEntyre

Program Policy Supervisor Texas Workforce Commission 101 East 15th Street Room 440T Austin, TX 78778 Phone: (512) 936-0369 Fax: (512) 463-7379 E-mail: george.mcentyre@twc.state.tx.us

UTAH

Larry Petersen

Treatment Consultant Utah State Division of Substance Abuse and Mental Health 120 North 200 West Room 201 Salt Lake City, UT 84103 Phone: (801) 466-2977 Fax: (801) 538-4696 E-mail: pete@aros.net

Dan Thornhill

Social Work Manager Utah Department of Workforce Services 140 East 300 South Salt Lake City, UT 84111 Phone: (801) 526-9767 Fax: (801) 526-9239 E-mail: dthornhill@utah.gov

VERMONT

Diana Carminati

Welfare-to-Work Programs Director Vermont Department of Prevention, Assistance, Transition, Health Access 103 South Main Street Waterbury, VT 05671 Phone: (802) 241-2853 Fax: (802) 241-2830 E-mail: dianac@path.state.vt.us

VIRGINIA

Barbara Cotter

Intergovernmental Liaison Virginia Department of Social Services 730 East Broad Street 9th Floor Richmond, VA 23219 Phone: (804) 692-1989 Fax: (804) 692-1949 E-mail: bmc2@dss.state.va.us

Dawn Farrell-Moore

Women's Substance Abuse Services Coordinator Richmond Behavioral Health Authority 107 South 5th Street Richmond, VA 23219 Phone: (804) 819-4185 Fax: (804) 819-8783 E-mail: mooredf@rbha.org

Mark Golden

TANF Manager Virginia Department of Social Services 730 East Broad Street Richmond, VA 23219 Phone: (804) 692-1731 Fax: (804) 225-2321 E-mail: mxg2@dss.state.va.us

Robert L. Johnson

Director, Office of Substance Abuse Services Department of Mental Health Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services 1220 Bank Street Richmond, VA 23218-1797 Phone: (804) 786-3906 Fax: (804) 786-4320 E-mail: robertljohnson@dmhmrsas.state.va.us

Martha Kurgans

Women's Services Specialist Department of Mental Health Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services P.O. Box 1797 1220 Bank Street Richmond, VA 23218-1797 Phone: (804) 786-3906 Fax: (804) 786-4320 E-mail: mkurgans@dmhmrsas.state.va.us

VIRGIN ISLANDS

Jaslene Williams

Acting Director Division of Mental Health and Drug Dependency Services Charles Harwood Hospital St. Croix, VI 00820-4370 Phone: (340) 773-1311, ext. 3202 Fax: (340) 778-5811 E-mail: jaslene@attglobal.net

Lennox C. Zamore

Department of Human Services Financial Programs Division 1303 Hospital Grounds St. Thomas, VI 00802 Phone: (340) 774-0930, ext. 4477 Fax: (340) 776-2756 E-mail: zman_vi@hotmail.com

WASHINGTON

Tom Haines

Office Chief Department of Social and Health Services 1009 College Street Lacey, WA 98504 Phone: (360) 413-3196 Fax: (360) 413-3123 E-mail: hainest@dshs.wa.gov

Emilio M. Vela

Treatment Services Supervisor Division of Alcohol and Substance Abuse P.O. Box 45330 Olympia, WA 98504-5330 Phone: (360) 438-8095 Fax: (360) 438-8057 E-mail: velaem@dshs.wa.gov

WEST VIRGINIA

James Hensley

Program Manager
West Virginia Department of Health and Human Resources
Office of Family Support
350 Capitol Street, Room B-18
Charleston, WV 25301
Phone: (304) 558-8290
Fax: (304) 558-2059
E-mail: angelaferguson@wvdhhr.org

WYOMING

Nichole Anderson

Social Services Consultant Department of Family Services 2300 Capitol Avenue Hathaway Building, Room 349 Cheyenne, WY 82002 Phone: (307) 777-3567 Fax: (307) 777-3659 E-mail: nander@state.wy.us

Kenneth Kaz

Economic Assistance Manager Department of Family Services Hathaway Building Cheyenne, WY 82009 Phone: (307) 777-5841 Fax: (307) 777-3693 E-mail: kkaz@state.wy.us

Safa Suleiman

Women's Treatment Coordinator Wyoming Department of Health Substance Abuse Division 2424 Pioneer Avenue, Suite 306 Cheyenne, WY 82002 Phone: (307) 777-5480 Fax: (307) 777-7006 E-mail: ssulei@state.wy.us

Erin Tuggle

Substance Abuse Control Plan Coordinator Wyoming Department of Health Substance Abuse Division 2424 Pioneer Avenue Suite 306 Cheyenne, WY 82002 Phone: (307) 777-7936 Fax: (307) 777-5849 E-mail: etuggl@state.wy.us

FEDERAL PARTICIPANTS

Sharon Amatetti

Public Health Analyst Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Center for Substance Abuse Treatment 5515 Security Lane Room 618 Rockville, MD 20852 Phone: (301) 443-7288 Fax: (301) 480-6077 E-mail: samatett@samhsa.gov

Karen Bagley

Program Analyst Administration for Children and Families Office of Planning, Research & Evaluation 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW 7th Floor West Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5143 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: kbagley@acf.hhs.gov

Duiona R. Baker

Senior Advisor Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 13-99 Rockville, MD 20857 Phone: (301) 443-2821 E-mail: dbaker@samhsa.gov

Ann H. Barbagallo

Senior Policy Ānalyst Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-139 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: abarbagallo@acf.hhs.gov

Lois A. Bell

Director, Division of State & Territory TANF Management Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW 5th Floor East Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-9317 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: Ibell@acf.hhs.gov

Crystal Blyler

Social Services Analyst Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Center for Mental Health Services 5600 Fishers Lane Room 11C-22 Rockville, MD 20857 Phone: (301) 594-3997 Fax: (301) 443-0541 E-mail: cblyler@samhsa.gov

James Butler

Program Specialist Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-9284 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: jdbutler@acf.hhs.gov

AI Fleming

Program Specialist Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-4977 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: afleming@acf.hhs.gov

Virginia Groves

Intern Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 901 D Street, SW, 5th Floor Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (310) 699-3455 E-mail: vgroves@acf.hhs.gov

Anne Herron

Director Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Division of State and Community Assistance 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 10-85 Rockville, MD 20857 Phone: (301) 443-5700 E-mail: aherron@samhsa.gov

John Horejsi

TANF Program Specialist Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5031 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: jhorejsi@acf.hhs.gov

K.A. Jagannathan

Program Analyst Administration for Children and Families Office of Planning, Research & Evaluation 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 205-4829 Fax: (202) 205-3598 E-mail: kjagannathan@acf.hhs.gov

April Kaplan

Deputy Director Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5138 E-mail: akaplan@acf.hhs.gov

Aaron Larson

Family Assistance Program Specialist Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW 5th Floor East Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-4619 E-mail: alarson@acf.hhs.gov

Paul Maiers

Program Specialist Administration for Children and Families 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5438 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: pmaiers@acf.hhs.gov

Claudia Richards

Senior Public Health Advisor Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Center for Substance Abuse Treatment 5600 Fishers Lane Rockville, MD 20852 Phone: (301) 443-9300 Fax: (301) 443-8345 E-mail: crichar1@samhsa.gov

Marcia Salovitz

TANF Program Specialist Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5459 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: msalovitz@acf.hhs.gov

Kristin Sneed

Budget Analyst Administration for Children and Families Legislative Affairs and Budget Office 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-4656 E-mail: ksneed@acf.hhs.gov

Mack Storrs

Senior Policy Analyst Administration for Children and Families Office of Family Assistance 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-9290 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: mstorrs@acf.hhs.gov

Lisa Washington-Thomas

TANF Program Specialist Division of State and Territory TANF Management Administration for Children and Families Division of Technical Assistance and Training 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5141 Fax: (202) 205-5887 E-mail: Iwashington@acf.hhs.gov

Girley Wright

Program Analyst Administration for Children and Families Office of Planning, Research & Evaluation 370 L'Enfant Promenade, SW Washington, DC 20447 Phone: (202) 401-5070 Fax: (202) 205-3598 E-mail: gwright@acf.hhs.gov

CONTRACT STAFF

Robin Dade

Project Coordinator AFYA, Inc. 6930 Carroll Avenue Suite 820 Takoma Park, MD 20912 Phone: (301) 270-0841 Fax: (301) 270-3441 E-mail: rdade@afyainc.com

Harry Day, Ph.D.

Project Director AFYA, Inc. 6930 Carroll Avenue Suite 820 Takoma Park, MD 20912 Phone: (301) 270-0841 Fax: (301) 270-3441 E-mail: hday@afyainc.com

Elaine Ferguson

Senior Associate Rivera, Sierra & Co., Inc. 1700 Rockville Pike Suite 110 Rockville, MD 20852 Phone: (301) 881-4700 Fax: (718) 858-0551 E-mail: eferguson@riverasierra.com

Jeanette Hercik, Ph.D.

Senior Managing Associate Caliber Associates 10530 Rosehaven Street Suite 400 Fairfax, VA 22030 Phone: (703) 385-3200 Fax: (703) 385-3206 E-mail: hercikj@calib.com

Courtney Kakuska

Senior Associate Caliber Associates 10530 Rosehaven Street Suite 400 Fairfax, VA 22030 Phone: (703) 385-3200 Fax: (703) 385-3206 E-mail: kakuskac@calib.com

Seri Palla

Associate Caliber Associates 10530 Rosehaven Street Suite 400 Fairfax, VA 22030 Phone: (703) 385-3200 Fax: (703) 385-3206 E-mail: pallas@calib.com

Chandra Robinson

Technical Assistance Coordinator AFYA, Inc. 6930 Carroll Avenue Suite 820 Takoma Park, MD 20912 Phone: (301) 270-0841 Fax: (301) 270-3441 E-mail: crobinson@afyainc.com

Shani Rolle

Research Assistant AFYA, Inc. 6930 Carroll Avenue Suite 820 Takoma Park, MD 20902 Phone: (301) 270-0841 Fax: (301) 270-3441 E-mail: srolle@afyainc.com

APPENDIX C CONFERENCE EVALUATIONS



Conference Evaluation Summary

Participants were asked to rate the quality of services of the conference on a 4-point scale, with 1 representing the lowest rating and 4 representing the highest. Listed below are the average ratings of evaluations submitted by 29 participants that represent substance abuse agencies and 25 participants that represent TANF agencies. There were a total of 59 evaluations submitted, of which five did not indicate the type of agency represented.

		AVERAGE RATINGS *		
OVERALL CONFERENCE			Y TYPE	
		TANF	S.A.	OVERALL#
•	To what extent did this conference enhance your knowledge base on the issue of TANF-substance abuse collaboration?	3.3	3.3	3.4
•	Travel and Logistical information	3.5	3.7	3.7
•	Session Organization/Flow of the day	3.2	3.5	3.5
INI	INDIVIDUAL SESSIONS			
A.	Welcoming Remarks	3.2	3.4	3.3
В.	Achieving Common Goals: Substance Abuse Treatment and Work as Concurrent Activities	3.4	3.3	3.3
C.	States: On the Forefront of Recovery & Self-Sufficiency	3.2	3.3	3.3
D.	TANF Part II: Prospects for the Future	3.0	3.0	3.0
Е.	Achieving Common Goals (Breakout A)	3.0	2.9	2.9
F.	Achieving Common Goals (Breakout B)	2.8	3.0	2.9
G.	Session Roundup	3.0	2.9	2.9
Н.	Facilitator's Report	2.9	3.1	3.0
I.	Commitment to Change: Review of Action Plans	2.9	3.2	3.0
J.	Session Roundup and Charge	3.4	3.1	3.2

* All averages have been rounded up to the nearest tenth.

The overall average ratings include evaluations submitted by participants who did <u>not</u> indicate which type of agency they represent.

In addition to the ratings, there were five questions asked, which all required written responses. Only 41 of the 59 evaluations contained answers to these questions, the most common responses are highlighted below. Please note, in many instances, participants have provided multiple answers for one question.

What did you find most helpful about the conference?						
what uld you find most helpful about the conference:						
33 out of 41 participants or 80.4% responded:	The opportunity to learn what other States are doing.					
27 out of 41 participants or 65.8% responded:	Understanding reauthorization/work requirements.					
What issues would you like to have had more discussion about at the conference?*						
26 out of 41 participants or 97 90/ responded.	Naturaling with page					
36 out of 41 participants or 87.8% responded:	Networking with peers.					
23 out of 41 participants or 56% responded:	Concerns about reauthorization.					
Responses from most to least common among 2 or more participants that represent Substance Abuse agencies:						
Vouchers						
Substance Abuse treatment						
TANF Reauthorization						
• Funding						
Women's treatment						
Responses from most to least common among 2 or more participants that represent						
TANF agencies:	si more pur derpuntes chue représent					
 Networking with TANF peers 						
 Concerns about reauthorization 						
 Substance Abuse treatment issues 						

* Responses amongst Substance Abuse and TANF representatives have been separated for this question. There were distinct differences in interests between the two groups.

What could have been changed to make the conference more successful?					
15 out of 41 participants or 36.5% responded:	Less speakers and more networking/workshops				
12 out of 41 participants or 29.2% responded:	More on TANF reauthorization				
7 out of 41 participants or 17% responded:	Report or case example of a Substance Abuse and TANF linkage				
5 out of 41 participants or 12.1% responded:	More key players				
3 out of 41 participants or 7.3% responded:	Nothing				
On what issues might you need technical assistance? What type of TA would be most useful to you?					
16 out of 41 participants or 39% responded:	Understanding reauthorization				
11 out of 41 participants or 26.8% responded:	Developing and implementing a partnership between Substance Abuse and TANF.				
9 out of 41 participants or 21.9% responded:	Development of a database/ tracking system to follow clients for outcome evaluation				
Is there any other information you would like DHHS to make available to you?					
12 out of 41 participants or 29.2% responded:	Tracking and Reporting				
9 out of 41 participants or 21.9% responded:	Information on the last session of the workshop				
9 out of 41 participants or 21.9% responded:	More on reauthorization				
6 out of 41 participants or 14.6% responded:	More on Voucher system				
Additional Comments:					
 Should have been for 2 or more full days Extremely well organized A map of conference facility would have been helpful Meeting room for first day was too small The agenda and content were excellent Thursday was exhausting - too much information with too little time. Rooms and meeting should have been at the same location. 					

